
 
	
	
	

Agenda	
 

Board of Directors 
	
Friday,	February	1,	2019	
Following	CAA	Finance	Committee	Meeting	
Kent	County	Commission	Chambers	
300	Monroe	Avenue,	NW,	Grand	Rapids,	MI	
 

 
 
1.  Call to Order                    Steve Heacock  
 
2.  Minutes of January 11, 2019                Action 
 
3.  Committee Reports 
   
  A.  Operations Committee 
    i.  Experience Grand Rapids Report          Information 

         
  B.  Finance Committee 
    i.  Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending      Action 
      December 31, 2018 
    ii.  SMG December 2018 Financial Statements –        Information 
      Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® 
    iii.  Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting        Information 
 
4.  Extension of Audit Services Agreement             Action 
 
5.  Resolution Approving Lake Michigan Credit Union as Authority Depository    Action 
 
6.  SMG Report and Facilities Calendars              Rich MacKeigan 
 
7.  Public Comment 
 
8.  CAA Board Member Comments 
 
9.  Adjournment  
 
 
 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, April 12, 2019 
Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting 

 
 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
300 MONROE AVENUE, NW | GRAND RAPIDS, MI 

Friday, January 11, 2019 
 
 

Attendance  
  

Members Present:  Steve Heacock, Chair 
   Rosalynn Bliss 
   Lew Chamberlin 
   Birgit Klohs 
   Charlie Secchia 
   Richard Winn 
 
Members Absent: Floyd Wilson, Jr.   
    

 Staff/Others:  Kathy Bart   SMG 
    Tom Bennett   Experience Grand Rapids 
    Wayman Britt   Kent County 
    Hilarie Carpenter  SMG 
    Tim Gortsema   Grand Rapids Griffins 
    Brian McVicar   The Grand Rapids Press/MLive 
    Chris Machuta   SMG 
    Eddie Tadlock   SMG 
    Brad Thomas   Progressive AE 
    John Van Houten  Progressive AE 
    Susan Waddell   CAA 
    Mark Washington  City of Grand Rapids 
    Richard Wendt   Dickinson Wright 
     
              
1. Call to Order  
 
Chair Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:50 a.m.  Treasurer, Richard Winn, recorded the meeting 
minutes.   
 
2. Reappointment of Board Members 
 
Jerry Czaja, Kent County Register of Deeds, performed the oaths of office for Lew Chamberlin, Steve 
Heacock, and Birgit Klohs, for terms expiring December 31, 2022. 
 
3. Minutes of Prior Meeting 
 
Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Winn, to approve the December 7, 2018, Minutes.  Motion carried. 
 
4. Committee Reports 
 

A. Operations Committee 
 
Chair Chamberlin stated there was nothing further to report.  The Operations Committee gave its full 
endorsement to re-engage Progressive AE for additional work on the amphitheater project. 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
January 11, 2019 – 2 

 
 
Motion by Mr. Chamberlin, support by Mr. Winn, to re-engage Progressive AE, at a cost not to exceed 
$15,000, to (i) perform additional geo-technical work; (ii) confirm ability of sites to accept this venue; 
and (iii) develop a scope of services necessary to finalize a complete project cost.  Motion carried. 
 
 B. Finance Committee 
 
  i. Acceptance of November 2018 Consolidated Financial Statement 
 
Mr. Winn presented the consolidated financial report for the period ended November 30, 2018.  The 
dashboard showed that 14 concerts generated $1,270,756 in event revenue, an increase of 90.2% from 
prior year (8 concerts) of $668,096.  Convention/trade show business generated $1,205,229 in event 
revenue, an increase of +3.1% from prior year (attendance decreased from 68,307 to 63,434) of 
$1,169,473.  Financial trends showed that the Arena net proceeds of $874,052 increased by 99.0% from 
prior year of $439,325, while DeVos Place® net proceeds of $440,473 decreased by (36.9%) from prior 
year of $697,778. 
 
Motion:  Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to accept the November 2018 Consolidated 
Financial Statements.  Motion carried. 

 
  ii. SMG November 2018 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®  
   Financial Statements 
 
Mr. Machuta reported that November was a robust month for the Van Andel Arena® with strong selling 
concerts by Lynyrd Skynyrd, Bob Seger, and Five Finger Death Punch, as well as solid-performing 
Griffin games. Revenue fell a little short at DeVos Place® with expenses coming in on par.  The fiscal 
year overall continues to perform ahead of budget.  The mid-year roll will be presented next month.  
 
5. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars 
 
Mr. MacKeigan provided a calendar update of upcoming events at the venues through the end of the fiscal 
year. 
 
6. Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
7. Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:00 a.m.  The next CAA Board meeting is Friday, February 1, 2019.   
 
 
 

     ______________________________________   
Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility
Rolling Forecast 2
Year-to-Date Comparable 3
Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Operating Proceeds - FY18 & FY19 4
Lagging 12-Month Comparison - 1/16 Through 12/18 5

Significant Notes 6

Administrative Accounts
Year-to-Date Comparable 7

Capital Projects - Second Quarter Roll 8

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report
December 31, 2018



Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 51                 35                 38                   12                   15                  17                           
Attendance 267,738        250,400        268,879          98,756            127,000         148,925                  
Event Income 1,618,729$   1,553,881$   1,854,416$     1,043,475$     1,197,665$    1,573,557$             

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 260               230               255                 84                   92                  97                           
Attendance 297,456        240,255        250,238          80,307            90,700           74,834                    
Event Income 3,384,268$   2,936,392$   3,002,604$     1,326,624$     1,237,045$    1,380,228$             

Prior Year Budget Actual
Operating Income (Loss) 1,198,523$     503,648$       1,266,555$             
Capital/Repair/Replacement (1,505,806)      (2,058,494)     (1,905,297)              

Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (307,283)$       (1,554,846)$   (638,742)$               (1)

*NOTES: (1):
      Unrestricted Fund Balance @ June 30, 2018 23,703,790$   

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard
Year-To-Date (6 Months)

December 31, 2018

DeVos Place®

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade

-1-



FY 2018
7/1 - 12/31

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate(1)
Budget Prior Year

Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 3,136,866$      4,162,979$      7,299,845$      5,847,699$      6,767,205$    
                    - Expenses - Facilities (2,055,952)       (2,297,381)$     (4,353,333)      (4,302,641)      (4,536,357)     
                               - Base Management Fees (88,220)            (88,220)$         (176,440)         (176,440)         (176,440)        
                               - Incentive Fee -                       (181,149)$       (181,149)         (92,319)           (133,957)        

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 992,694           1,596,229$      2,588,923        1,276,299        1,920,451      
   Parking 170,082           197,918$         368,000           454,000           366,974         
   Pedestrian Safety (21,102)            (88,898)$         (110,000)         (110,000)         (82,923)          
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 1,141,674        1,705,249$      2,846,923        1,620,299        2,204,502      

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 3,026,559        3,561,504$      6,588,063        6,519,176        7,192,939      
                   - Expenses - Facilities (3,206,052)       (3,202,381)$     (6,408,433)      (6,360,926)      (6,803,548)     
                              - Base Management Fees (88,220)            (88,220)$         (176,440)         (176,440)         (176,440)        
                              - Incentive Fee -                       (171,731)$       (171,731)         (260,561)         (218,923)        
   Net Operating Income (Loss) (267,713)          99,172$           (168,541)         (278,751)         (5,972)            
   Parking 565,666           714,334$         1,280,000        1,247,069        1,272,941      
   Pedestrian Safety (10,929)            (39,071)$         (50,000)           (58,100)           (45,050)          

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 287,024           774,435$         1,061,459        910,218           1,221,919      

Other

   Revenues 180,178           399,822$         580,000           512,000           397,523         

   Expenses (342,321)          (740,810)$       (1,083,131)      (1,123,131)      (3) (913,502)        (2)

     Net Other (162,143)          (340,988)$       (503,131)         (611,131)         (515,979)        

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 1,266,555        2,138,696$      3,405,251        1,919,386        2,910,442      

Capital Expenditures (1,905,297)       (4,129,696)$     (6,034,993)      (6,188,190)      (4) (2,618,105)     
Results Net of Capital Expenditures (638,742)$        (1,991,000)$     (2,629,742)$     (4,268,804)$     292,337$       

Notes:
(1) Second Quarter Update to be Provided with January Financial Report (2/1/19 Board Meeting).
(2) Includes One-Time Contribution, of $200,000, to Deferred Compensation Plan.
(3) Includes budget amendment to provide for hotel study carryover balance of $39,513.
(4) Includes budget amendment to provide for several capital project balances carried over from FY 18.  See June 2018
    consolidated financial report for details. 

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

FY 2019

-2-



Annual Year-To-Date

FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage

Final Budget Change 7/1-12/31 7/1 - 12/31 Change

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 6,767,205$    5,847,699$      (13.6) 2,758,187$      3,136,866$        13.7

                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,536,357)     (4,302,641)      5.2 (2,058,167)      (2,055,952)        0.1

                               - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (176,440)         0.0 (88,220)           (88,220)             0.0

                               - Incentive Fee (133,957)        (92,319)           31.1             -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,920,451      1,276,299        (33.5)            611,800           992,694             62.3

   Parking 366,974         454,000           23.7 171,750           170,082             (1.0)              

   Pedestrian Safety (82,923)          (110,000)         (32.7) (18,752)           (21,102)             (12.5)            

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 2,204,502      1,620,299        (26.5) 764,798           1,141,674          49.3             

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 7,192,939      6,519,176        (9.4)              3,401,134        3,026,559          (11.0)

                   - Expenses - Facilities (6,803,548)     (6,360,926)      6.5 (3,149,439)      (3,206,052)        (1.8)

                              - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (176,440)         0.0 (88,220)           (88,220)             0.0

                              - Incentive Fee (218,923)        (260,561)         (19.0)            -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (5,972)            (278,751)         (4567.6) 163,475           (267,713)           (163.8)

   Parking 1,272,941      1,247,069        (2.0) 464,452           565,666             21.8

   Pedestrian Safety (45,050)          (58,100)           (29.0)            (14,434)           (10,929)             24.3             

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 1,221,919      910,218           (25.5) 613,493           287,024             (53.2)

Other

   Revenues 397,523         512,000           28.8 125,351           180,178             43.7             

   Expenses (913,502)        (1,123,131)      (22.9) (305,120)         (342,321)           (12.2)

     Net Other (515,979)        (611,131)         (18.4)            (179,769)         (162,143)           9.8

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 2,910,442      1,919,386        (34.1)            1,198,522        1,266,555          5.7               

Capital/Repair Expenditures (2,618,105)     (6,188,190)      (136.4) (1,505,806)      (1,905,297)        (26.5)
Results Net of Capital Expenditures 292,337$       (4,268,804)      (1,460.2)       (307,284)$       (638,742)$         (107.9)          

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2019

-3-



-4-



-5-



Van Andel Arena®
•      Page 1 - Seventeen concerts generated $1,573,557 in event revenue, an increase of 50.8% from

prior year (12 concerts) of $1,043,475.
•        Page 3 - Net proceeds of $1,141,674 increased by 49.3% from prior year of $764,798.

DeVos Place®
•      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $1,380,228 in event revenue, an

increase of +4.0% from prior year (attendance decreased from 80,307 to 74,834) of $1,326,624.
•        Page 3 - Net "proceeds" of $287,024 decreased by (53.2%) from prior year Net Proceeds

of $613,494.

Significant Notes

-6-



FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1-12/31 7/1/-12/31 Change

Other
Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 282,816$     392,000$     38.6             121,695$         180,178$       48.1             

Miscellaneous 114,707       120,000       4.6               3,656               -                     (100.0)          

397,523       512,000       28.2             125,351           180,178         43.7             
Expenses

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 208,333       200,000       (4.0)              75,000             66,667           (11.1)            

Diversity Initiative 60,420         275,000       355.1           29,849             12,331           (58.7)            
Wages/Benefits 141,012       140,318       (0.5)              55,547             56,587           1.9               
Professional Services 86,103         78,000         (9.4)              32,442             32,535           0.3               
DID Assessment 60,326         58,200         (3.5)              40,254             62,616           55.6             
Food & Beverage Repairs -                   40,000         100.0+ -                      -                     -                 

Consulting Services 73,006         189,513       (1) 159.6           18,714             41,881           123.8           
Landscaping 24,346         25,000         2.7               8,131               11,340           39.5             
Procurement of Art 13,188         30,000         127.5           8,056               26,214           225.4           
Insurance 14,713         27,100         84.2             21,260             21,457           0.9               

Supplies/Other 232,055       
(2)

60,000         (74.1)            15,867             10,693           (32.6)            
913,502       1,123,131    22.9             305,120           342,321         12.2             

Net Proceeds - Operating (515,979)$    (611,131)$    (18.4)            (179,769)$       (162,143)$      9.8               

Notes: .
(1) Includes SMG $53,225 and $39,513 for hotel study, and $96,775 for "destination asset study follow-up work."

(2)
Includes $200,000 one-time payment to deferred comp. trust.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

December 31, 2018

-7-



-8-



































 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  Richard A. Winn 
  Finance Committee Chairperson 
 
From:  Robert White 
   
Subject: Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting 
   
Date:  January 25, 2019 
 
 
The previously (6/9/17) adopted “Parking Operation Agreement” requires the City-Auto Parking 
System to provide a quarterly report regarding City/County utilization of discounted DeVos 
Place® monthly parking passes.  The content of this second quarter (FY19) periodic report 
includes the following information: 
 
 A) “… the number of current City and County passes outstanding …” 
 
  The City currently holds 126 monthly passes. 
  The County currently holds 164 monthly passes. 
 
 B) “… the increase and/or decrease in such City and County passes since the prior 
report …” 
 
  The City decreased the number of passes out by 3 between 9/1/18 and 12/31/18. 
  The County increased the number of passes out by 11 between 9/1/18 and   
  12/31/18.   
 
 C) “… a calculation of the difference between the then current market rate for 
monthly passes for the Parking Spaces and the then current rate for monthly passes by the City 
and County.” 
 
  The current (public) monthly pass rate is $154, while the discounted 
   City/County rate is $66.25. 
  The City currently holds 126 passes with a total annualized discount of $129,519. 
  The County currently holds 164 passes with a total annualized discount of   
   $172,692. 
 
Attached with this correspondence is a copy of the quarterly report from City-Auto Parking 
System.   
 
 
Cc: Richard MacKeigan 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Account 

 
Previous 
End of 
Quarter 
Space Count 
Q1 FY19 

 
Total Spaces 
End of Q2  
FY 19 

 
Space Count 
Change 

 
Current 
Monthly 
Market Rate 
Price 
Difference 
EOQ* 

 
Monthly Price 
Difference 
Variance, Prev 
Quarter 

17th Circuit 
Court 

 
25 

 
25 

 
0 

 
 $2,193.75 

 
$0.00 

KC Facilities 
Management 

 
128 

 
139 

 
11 

 
$12,197.25 

 
$965.25 

City of GR 129 126 -3 $11,056.50 ($263.25) 

Total 282 290 8 $25,447.50 $702.00 

 
*Current Market Rate is $154 monthly, City/County Contractual Rate is $66.25 monthly, 
effective 7/1/2018.   
 



 

 
 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
To: Richard A. Winn, CAA Finance Committee Chair 
 CAA Board Members 
 
From: Robert J. White, Finance Director 
 
Date: January 7, 2019 
 
Re: Extension of Audit Services Agreement 
 
 
 The SMG agreement includes a requirement for annual “Special Purpose” audits (Article VI, Sec. 
VI.II.). The purpose of these audits is intended to test the provider’s internal controls and verify the 
calculation of incentive fees as defined in the agreement. The agreement, further, provides that the audit 
firm will be selected by SMG and approved by the CAA.  
 
 The CAA has an obligation, under State Statute, to provide for the annual audit of its consolidated 
financial statements. 
      
 In 2016, both SMG and the CAA, utilizing a joint request for proposals, awarded three year audit 
agreements to Rehmann Robson. These audits covered the years ended June 30, 2016 through June 30, 
2018. During this time period, the audits were completed in a timely manner and staff, of SMG and the 
CAA, has been satisfied with the work of Rehmann Robson. 
 
 More recently, staff of SMG and the CAA, requested a quote for extension of the agreement 
through an additional three year period covering the years ending June 30, 2019 through June 30, 2021. 
The response, from Rehmann Robson, is attached with this correspondence. The fees, quoted in the letter, 
rise in annual three percent increments over the last year of the current agreement. 
 
 Staff, from SMG, has been very satisfied with Rehmann Robson’s work and recommends 
acceptance of the proposal as it relates to the SMG agreement provision. Under terms of the agreement 
with SMG, this recommendation requires the concurrence of the CAA Board. 
 
 In a like manner, staff of the CAA has been very satisfied with the auditor’s work and 
recommends acceptance of the proposal as it relates to the CAA’s audit requirement. 
 
 
Cc: Rich MacKeigan 
 Chris Machuta 
 
 
Encl: Proposal to Extend Auditing Services Contract 







 

Van Andel Arena® 
DeVos Place® 
 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:    CAA Finance Committee 
  CAA Board of Directors 
  
From:   Richard MacKeigan 

Date:    January 29, 2019 

Re:     Lake Michigan Credit Union Summary Analysis  

             

In late 2017, SMG put out to bid for banking services, with Lake Michigan Credit Union 
(LMCU) being selected.  LCMU was able to meet SMG needs operationally, provided 
ATM’s for both venues, and leased a suite at VAA.  SMG continues to be happy with the 
change both operationally and financially. 
 
It was discussed at the time that SMG made the change that to have the CAA 
administrative account moved to match the SMG provider, assuming SMG was happy 
operationally and it made financial sense to make the change.  Cheri McConomy did an 
analysis of fees from the current Fifth Third banking and the proposed LMCU pricing.  
That analysis is attached for your reference. 
 
I am recommending that the CAA move the operational accounts over to LMCU.  The 
relationship with the Kent County Treasury fund will remain as is with most of the cash 
reserves being held with the County. 
 
Please feel free to contact me should there be any questions or concerns. 
 



1/31/2019 SMG Summary Analysis - LMCU vs 5-3.xlsx

Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Total
Lake Michigan Credit Union

Estimated LMCU 
Interest Earned 81.99 130.29 87.10 127.81 147.86 83.76 88.68 121.38 99.79 61.96 82.03 81.13 1,193.78    

Estimated LMCU 
Fees** 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 360

Net Interest 
Calculated 51.99 100.29 57.10 97.81 117.86 53.76 58.68 91.38 69.79 31.96 52.03 51.13 833.78

** Assumes $20/mo. Business Plus Checking fee plus 2 estimated incoming wire fees ($5/ea.)

Fifth Third Bank
Earnings Credit 

Amount 43.57 62.31 58.39 76.65 88.75 55.37 57.08 79.75 63.13 36.65 54.52 55.41 731.58

Total Fifth Third Fees 319.48 386.04 438.03 833.98 677.48 512.96 613.52 773.88 965.47 481.18 424.1 195.22 6621.34

Estimated Fees w/o 
Vault Charges* 99.04 119.67 135.79 258.53 210.02 159.02 190.19 239.90 299.30 149.17 131.47 60.52 2052.62

Estimate Net Interest 
(Charge) (55.47)      (57.36)  (77.40)  (181.88)  (121.27)  (103.65)  (133.11)  (160.15)  (236.17)  (112.52)  (76.95)  (5.11)   (1,321.04)  

* Utilizing 4 months of fee detail information, applied average standard fee dvidided 
by total average fee percentage (to exclude cash vault charges)

H:\Sue\CAA Documents\SMG Summary Analysis - LMCU vs 5-3.xlsx



 

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY 
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING LAKE MICHIGAN CREDIT UNION AS 
DEPOSITORY FOR AUTHORITY FUNDS AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO  
 

 Boardmember ________________, supported by Boardmember ______________, 

moved the adoption of the following resolution: 

 WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority (the 

“Authority”) is an authority created pursuant to Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999, 

as amended (“Act 203”), with such powers and responsibilities as provided in Act 203, its 

Articles of Organization and its Bylaws; and  

 WHEREAS, Section 8.2 of the Bylaws provides that all funds of the CAA shall be 

deposited as required by Act 203 and placed in such banks, trust companies or other depositories 

as selected by the Board of Directors of the CAA (the “Board”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined to designate Lake Michigan Credit Union 

(“LMCU”) as a depository for CAA funds. 

 RESOLVED: 

1. That LMCU is designated as a depository of CAA funds and to provide other 

financial accommodations as provided in this Resolution. 

2. That the Chairperson or any other officer of the Board may (a) open any deposit 

or share account(s) in the name of the CAA, (b) endorse checks and orders for the payment of 

money or otherwise withdrawal or transfer funds on deposit, (c) enter into a written lease for the 

purpose of renting, maintaining, accessing and terminating a safe deposit box and (d) exercise all 

other powers designated in this Resolution. 

 



-2- 
 

 

3. That with respect to such depository designation the CAA acknowledges, 

represents and agrees that: 

a. The signature of the Chairperson or any other office of the CAA is 

conclusive evidence of their authority to act on behalf of the CAA. 

b. The terms and conditions of any account agreement, properly opened by 

the Chairperson or any other officer of the CAA and LMCU, at any time is authorized to 

charge for all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the payment of money, that are drawn on 

LMCU. 

c. That LMCU may furnish at its discretion automated access devices to 

facilitate those powers authorized by this Resolution or other resolutions in effect at the 

time of issuance (the term “automated access device” includes, but is not limited to, 

credit cards, automated teller machines (ATM), and debit card). 

d. That LMCU (i) may rely on alternative signature and verification codes 

issued to or obtained from the Chairperson or any other officer of the CAA (the term 

“alternative signature and verification codes” includes, but is not limited to, facsimile 

signatures on file with LMCU, personal identification numbers (“PIN”), and digital 

signatures) and if a facsimile signature specimen has been provided by the CAA, (ii) is 

authorized to treat the facsimile signature as the signature of the Chairperson or any other 

officer of the CAA regardless of by whom or by what means the facsimile signature may 

have been affixed so long as it resembles the facsimile signature specimen on file, and 

(iii) authorizes the Chairperson or any other officer of the CAA to have custody of 

LMCU’s private key used to create a digital signature and to request issuance of a 

certificate listing the corresponding public key. 



-3- 
 

 

4. That the CAA’s Administrative Manager shall have access to the information 

contained in the CAA accounts at LMCU for such purposes as preparing audit confirmation 

letters and reviewing such accounts to resolve discrepancies and provide explanations. 

5. That this Resolution does not conflict with or contravene the CAA’s Articles of 

Organization and Bylaws. 

6. That this Resolution shall continue to have effect until express written notice of 

its recession or modification has been received by LMCU. 

7. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the 

same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict. 

YEAS:  Boardmembers           

              

NAYS: Boardmembers           

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers           

ABSENT: Boardmembers          
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 
 
 
Dated:  February 1, 2019           
      Susan M. Waddell 
      Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 
 
 
 



-4- 
 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a 
regular meeting held on February 1, 2019, and that public notice of said meeting was given 
pursuant to, and in compliance with, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as 
amended. 
 
 
 
 
Dated: February 1, 2019           
      Susan M. Waddell 
      Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary 


	Agenda.CAA
	January.2019
	December 2018 
	Cover Sheet
	Dashboard
	Roll
	Consolidated Statement
	Monthly Net Proceeds
	Lagging 12 Months
	Significant Notes
	Administrative Accounts
	2nd Quarter Caplital Roll

	SMG Financial Statement.December 2018
	Memo - Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting-Jan2019
	Extension of Audit Services Agreement
	Proposal to Extend Auditing Services Contract
	Memo - LMCU Summary Analysis
	SMG Summary Analysis - LMCU vs 5-3
	Sheet1

	Resolution Setting up LMCU as Depository for Authority Funds

